
 

REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT
MEETING MINUTES 

April 10, 2003

A meeting of the Water District Commission was held on April 10, 2003 at the Bedford1
Meeting Room.  Present were Marilyn Peterman, Selectman (Amherst) Keith Hickey,2
Town Manager (Bedford), Mary Jeffery, (Hollis), Frank Byron, Board of Selectman3
(Litchfield), Andre Garron, Development Director (Londonderry), Jay Minkarah,4
Community Development Director (Merrimack), Cynthia Herman, Selectman (Milford),5
Fred Britton, Alderman-at-Large (Nashua), Jean-Guy Bergeron, Board of Selectmen6
representative (Pelham), Dennis McCarthy, Public Works Director (Raymond), Kevin7
Waterhouse, State Representative (Windham), Andrew Singelakis, Director of the8
Nashua Regional Planning Commission, and Karen White (Research Team).   9

10
Present in the audience were Barbara Pressley (Nashua Mayor's representative to the11
Water District Commission) and Attorney David Connell, City of Nashua.12

13
Chairman Peterman opened the meeting at 6:38 P.M.14

15
Approve Minutes16

17
A motion was made by Ms. Herman, seconded by Ms. Jeffery, and passed to18
approve the minutes of February 27, 2003.19

20
A motion was made by Mr. Minkarah, seconded by Mr. Waterhouse, and passed21
to approve the minutes of the March 27, 2003 with the following corrections:22

23
1. The spelling of Attorney Drescher's name was corrected and Mr. Minkarah's24

comments were incorrectly noted as being by Mr. Singelakis25
26

Page 1, middle of full paragraph "Mr. Singelakis supported…"27
Page 2, 2/3rds down the page under Review sections from previous, "Mr.28
Singelakis pointed out…"29
Page 4, 3rd paragraph, second line "Mr. Singelakis asked…"30
Page 7, 1st line of the 3rd paragraph "Mr. Singelakis asked…"31

32
Public Time33

34
Chairperson Peterman invited Ms. Pressley to make her presentation to the35
members present.36

37
Ms. Pressley said in trying to decide how you take a privately owned company38
and convert it to a publicly owned entity, she believes that it is an opportunity to



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 2

strongly that Nashua receive fair representation for its 80,000 people/22,0001
ratepayers.  She suggests putting into place all the safeguards that this collective2
group can come up with for good government, such as term limits, strong conflict3
of interest regulations, requirement that delegates be advertised for, and that a4
proper system be in place to select these people.  She said it is important to do5
everything possible to avoid any one point-of-view or one perspective to6
dominate what is going to affect everyone.  Ms. Pressley named her proposed7
entity, PRWD for Pennichuck Regional Water District.  She would propose two8
governing bodies; each would come under state notification and the right-to-know9
laws.  The larger group she called the shareholders board.  To have a share it10
would require that you receive a water bill.  Ms. Pressley prepared a handout of11
all the municipalities that have any water bills to its residents.  In order to12
establish a group that meets occasionally it is necessary to determine the13
number of members within this group.  In her scenario the maximum number14
would be forty-six.  She stated that anything that the boards would do would be15
public with published minutes, sent to the Board of Aldermen, Selectmen and16
Councilors.   Her system would have three different categories of delegates.17
One delegate would have a specific number of votes, similar to a republican or18
democratic convention, with that delegate casting its votes in favor or against the19
matter at hand.  She foresees one vote per ratepayer to determine the number of20
votes a delegate would have.  She suggests that these positions be advertised,21
that there be a standard application and process for determining the best22
candidate.  All delegates must be ratepayers.  There would be a back up in the23
event a municipality could not find, after due diligence, a ratepayer to serve as a24
delegate.  At that point a non-ratepayer would be permitted.   She suggested that25
one or more town may want to coordinate with each other and team up to send a26
delegate who would cast its vote for multiple towns.    She suggested that the27
election of a Board of Directors be possibly seven or nine members keeping it an28
uneven number.  She suggests that the Board would be elected by the29
shareholders.  One of the safeguards to ensure that no one geographic area30
dominates the Board, would be that the directors would not have to live within the31
political or geographic boundaries of the Water District, but no more than 3 of 7,32
or 4 of 9, could be from one municipality.  She sees the shareholders board33
meeting rarely, perhaps two to four times a year.  She recommends term limits, a34
fair and reasonable salary but not one that motivate people to want to serve for35
the salary.  She suggested a per meeting compensation.  It would require staff36
for the Board and by-laws for governing of the board.37

38
Chairperson Peterman asked Ms. Pressley to explain delegate, limited delegate39
and double delegate, which she proposed in her handout.  Ms. Pressley40
responded that this was to give each community some flexibility.  The delegate41
would be the one who would cast a vote for 1,000.  The limited delegate would42
have between 1 and 1,000.  A double delegate would be for the communities that43
have more than 1,000 ratepayers and have decided to combine it so that they44
could cast between 1,000 and 2,000 votes.  This would only pertain to roll call45
votes, which she sees as being very rare.  46

47
Ms. Pressley does not believe that the shareholders do not create policy but they48
do vote on the Board of Directors.  She suggests a staggered term limit.  She49
brought up the question of whether people would be able to mail in their votes50
and her personal opinion is that they should not be allowed to do so and should51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 3

appear to cast their vote.  The smaller body would be hired personnel who would1
not be required to be a resident within the municipalities but would be hired for2
their expertise, meeting more often to carry out the management of the PRWD.3
Ms. Pressley included some general concepts regarding the transition and4
suggested that the Charter include language to indicate that no major changes5
will be made for a period of time and that all existing agreements will be honored.6
She also pointed out that there are many rate structures that should remain the7
same as they currently exist.  She recommends that ratepayers be invited to8
meetings at least once a year.  9

10
Chairperson Peterman asked the committee if anyone had a question.  The11
Chairperson asked Mr. Minkarah if he sees Budweiser, a major ratepayer in12
Merrimack, fitting into this scheme presented by Ms. Pressley.  He responded13
"not even remotely".  He said that "it is one ratepayer but the volume is so14
extensive that there is no way that Merrimack could possibly accept a scenario15
that gives it less than 1% of the votes."  He said that he does "not believe that the16
only way of determining representation is ratepayers.  The proposal does not17
give meaningful voice to the community of Merrimack and …..does not give a18
meaningful voice to any other community sitting at this table." 19

20
Ms. Pressley commented, "in response to water usage I didn't bring it because it21
is huge but I did get some information from Pennichuck that I found very22
interesting.  The first community to join after Nashua was in fact Anheuser23
Busch.  This was in the mid-1980's and Anheuser-Busch had had its own system24
and it had failed.  They asked Pennichuck to come and fix it for them.  At the25
request of doing that, they did."  She noted that the group she put together26
looked at whether consumption should be the basis for representation but the27
consensus was that this would defeat the purpose of conserving water.  She28
suggested that the main beneficiary to having this would be the Town of29
Merrimack. 30

31
Mr. Minkarah responded that Merrimack is not looking to being rewarded, but32
having recognition for the depth and level of interest that is not limited to the33
number of individual customers.  The volume of water used is an issue.  The34
number of customers is an issue.  So is the amount of land that is located within35
the water shed.  Land ownership and the amount of assets in terms of real estate36
that the Regional Water District would own in any community is an issue.  These37
are all valid issues and ratepayers alone simply are not a sufficient determinant38
of the interests that any community has and should not be the sole criteria used39
to determine representation.40

41
Ms. Pressley stated that this is the single water supply for the second largest city42
in the state and even if representation was determined using the criteria that Mr.43
Minkarah suggested, Nashua would still come out ahead.  She stated that the44
majority of communities are mainly residential and they enjoy other water45
sources and this is just a small portion of their service.  46

47
Chairperson Peterman spoke about the agenda providing for non-public session48
if necessary.  She noted that Pennichuck rejected Nashua's initial offer and that,49
according to the newspaper, and that Nashua was interested in pursuing eminent50
domain.  There was discussion and concern by the other towns as to whether51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 4

there was some information that the District may need or could get relating to1
that offer.  She recapped that many of the town representatives thought that the2
offer would be made for the entire system of Pennichuck.  In a previous3
presentation by Brian McCarthy he had talked about why Nashua may not be4
interested in the entire system.  Mr. Britton was asked to speak with his Board of5
Alderman and/or water committee and determine if there were things that could6
be presented to help the District better understand about that offer and where7
does the District go from here.  She asked if a non-public session is necessary.8
Mr. Britton asked the Nashua Corporate Counsel, David Connell to respond.9
Chairperson Peterman said, "Let the record show that we are still in public10
session."  Attorney Connell replied that he does not believe anything was said11
that has not been noted publicly either via the newspaper or somewhere else.12
He said that everyone has probably seen a copy of the offer that was made by13
Nashua.  What it was for is all the assets for the three regulated utilities.  That14
represented as much as they had been advised that they had the power to ask15
for in the RSA38 proceeding.  Everybody acknowledges that it might be easier if16
the entire Pennichuck Corporation were obtainable, but probably not in that17
manner.  Nobody he had spoken with had indicated that it could be through an18
RSA38 proceeding.  The rejection letter that came out on March 25th said that19
they didn't believe it was in the interest of their customers, employees or20
stockholders and that they did not believe that the city or any public entity could21
do as good a job as they have been doing.  They further said that it would not22
leave Pennichuck Corporation as a viable company and that entered into their23
deliberations as well.  They stated that they will resist and they are not even24
admitting that there is a right to proceed under RSA38, which is the kind of thing25
you would expect them to say.  The next move is that they are putting together26
their budgets for has to be done.  The prediction is that this could be a long effort27
that based on the limited experience that the PUC has in these sorts of cases,28
they are apt to take up first the issue of 'what if anything is in the public interest29
for the city to acquire'.  If they decide on this, there would be a separate hearing30
to decide what it is worth.  This could take months or years.  At all times the city31
remains open if the company were to change its position to negotiate settlement.32
At whatever point that takes place, the city would then have to go to the bond33
market.  A certain amount of due diligence has to be done in the course of doing34
this whether you end up with the company by agreement or through eminent35
domain.  You then have to turn around and go to Wall Street and show why they36
should be interested in the bonds of this entity.  You have to show that the37
system is in pretty good shape and that you have the ability to run the company38
through management structure.  39

40
Chairperson Peterman asked about the statement that buying the three regulated41
utilities was what they had the power to do.  Attorney Connell noted that the bond42
counsel pointed out that as soon as an entity is given the company, under the43
back section of RSA38 that allows a city that is running to acquire additional44
water shed protection lands if they are appropriate.  That would be a second45
phase if it were desirable to get some of that land back as water shed protection.46
That could be done right after permission is given.47

48
Chairperson Peterman asked if the legislature passes allowing the formation of49
this Regional Water District, would the District have the ability to make a different50
offer.  Attorney Connell responded, yes.  Chairperson Peterman expressed51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 5

concern about the length of time it would take to do an eminent domain and the1
cost of this.  Ms. White noted that previously, there had been a statement that2
revenue bonds could only be used to purchase the regulated portions of the3
corporation.  It was later determined that revenue bonds could indeed be used to4
purchase the entire corporation, although perhaps at a different rate of interest. 5

6
Attorney Connell suggested that there may be even a more basic question which7
is what is the right of a municipality to acquire the assets of a private business8
that are not going to be used.  Chairperson Peterman asked if a municipality or9
district purchases the entire company, couldn't it sell off the assets that it does10
not want to be involved in?  Attorney Connell responded that this is correct.11
There was discussion about the possibility of a municipality owning assets such12
as buildings and/or land.  13

14
Ms. Herman stated that this would put them in the business of not just running a15
water company but rather puts them in the business of making business deals.16
The District would be operating as a corporation.  Ms. White stated that she can17
understand not wanting to take by eminent domain the unregulated assets, but if18
they could go to the table and negotiate …….Attorney Connell said to forget19
RSA38 and look at your other sources of municipal power, not by eminent20
domain but just by consent.  What can you buy and sell as a municipality?21
Where do you get the right to buy and sell business interests?  The question was22
posed by Chairperson Peterman, "But if the corporation is made up of these23
interests and we are buying the corporation, doesn't that mean that we bought all24
of the assets of the corporation and we can sell off those assets that we don't25
chose to hold onto?"  Attorney Connell stated "If you had the power to buy it, you26
probably would have the power to sell it."27

28
Mr. Minkarah commented that it wouldn't be a bad idea to go to our own town29
attorneys on this but he is certain that there are some alternate ways.  He further30
stated that if you are a regional development authority you can buy commercial31
and industrial properties even if you are a municipality or a group of32
municipalities which is also allowed by law.  This may be an alternative to create33
some sort of economic development entity that could hold those assets.34

35
Ms. White said it is a way to get watershed land.  Attorney Connell said his36
understanding is that although land may still be held by Southwood, that these37
developed properties may not be owned outright but has an interest in them.38
Chairperson Peterman stated that it is lucrative for a corporation to do business39
with Hudson and Litchfield.  The contract is with Hudson and Pennichuck East40
Corporation according to Mr. Byron.  Attorney Connell advised that the other41
company is Pennichuck Service Company that has a pretty good value as a42
going concern.  As a private company it has certain tangible assets but they are43
not much according to its value as a going concern with all the brainpower44
behind it.  Ms. White suggested that if they get over the hurdle of asking the45
question as to whether they do or do not have the power to apply these46
proportionate shares in a limited partnership for some period of time.  It seems47
that there might be some value in sitting down at the table and see what can be48
negotiated while all of the work for eminent domain is still progressing.  Attorney49
Connell stated that whenever there is a controversy like this you never close50
yourself down to negotiations while you are pursuing other matters.  If the51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 6

company were willing to negotiate, that would make sense.  It was stated that as1
the planned merger was going to result in no tax consequence to people2
because there is going to be a stock exchange, in their opinion there would be3
consequences from a sale and that may be one reason why they don't want to do4
it.  Mr. Minkarah asked Mr. Singelakis if he is still involved with the Gateway5
Economic entity that was formerly the Nashua Region and if that is still6
alive…..Mr. Singelakis replied that it is still there but not doing a lot.  It meets on7
a regular basis.  Mr. Minkarah asked if they are organized as a non-profit8
corporation and Mr. Singelakis responded, yes.  Mr. Minkarah asked if that would9
allow access to some of the loan money or industrial revenue bonds to apply for10
some of the non-water company assets.   11

12
Chairperson Peterman suggested that an answer be sought from Attorneys Chip13
Sullivan, Bill Drescher as to whether they can purchase the municipality -14
unregulated portions of the Pennichuck Company.  In other words, can a District15
purchase a corporation and sell parts as it decides?  The second question16
pertains to the economic development entity matter.  She asked Mr. Singelakis17
and Mr. Minkarah to bring back an answer on this.  Mr. Singelakis suggested18
"maybe you can also form two separate entities - a water district and a regional19
economic development corporation that can handle specifically those assets. 20

21
Ms. White asked if it has been defined or figured out where the Pennichuck22
employees fall in this.  Attorney Connell believes that many employees work for23
both companies.  He further said that there has been talk that it may be desirable24
for an organization of experienced people ready willing and able to provide25
service to some or all of these systems.  26

27
Chairperson Peterman said we are not ready to seek negotiations yet and asked28
if anyone knows what happened to the Bill.  Ms. Herman responded that the Bill29
has some amendments and the only substantive thing pertained to any rate30
increases over the next four years, would have PUC oversight.  It is going back31
to the House.  Mr. Britton noted that the Board of Aldermen talked about32
employees and they thought that the current employees would stay there to33
make the service as transparent as possible.  They also talked about them34
becoming employees of the District.  They still do not want them at any time to be35
city employees.  Attorney Connell noted that there are three possibilities;36
employment of the District, employment within the same or new private company37
that makes itself available for contract servicing or they could be employees of38
the city.  He reiterated that there is a lot of sentiment about them not being39
employees of the city.  Mr. Britton suggested that if it is being considered to form40
a sub-committee of this committee or using an economic development authority41
to make an offer to Pennichuck in any manner, it is dividing this committee and42
the whole purpose in being here in his opinion.  The District would be competing43
with the City of Nashua.  Chairperson Peterman does not see it that way even44
though the two things happening may have that appearance.  It has always been45
the idea that the District would buy this entire corporation.  Even if the City of46
Nashua were purchasing, because they could at the time, then they were going47
to combine with the Regional District if the Bill passes.  She suggested that the48
eminent domain process would be time-consuming and costly and asked if the49
District was to be able to purchase the entire corporation, would Nashua be50
willing to drop the eminent domain process.  Attorney Connell responded that if51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 7

the Charter was in place he supposes that would be logical.  Mr. Singelakis1
suggested treating it as a study and try to get the questions answered.2
Chairperson Peterman looking at the timeline said that if they could finalize in3
June with the Bill having passed and the Charter being in place as a Regional4
Water District……Ms. White suggested asking Pennichuck if they would be5
interested in selling the entire corporation and if so…..Mr. Britton said that they6
have stated that in the paper…..Attorney Connell said he does not believe they7
have actually said that the corporation was for sale to a municipal entity.  They8
have said that the existence of the non-regulated company makes it more9
difficult.  10

11
Chairperson Peterman thanked Attorney Connell for appearing and answering12
questions.13

14
Mr. Waterhouse advised that the House and Senate calendar would be available15
on Monday.  He expects that the vote will be taken next Thursday.  It is then sent16
to the Governor.  It was discussed that within four weeks it may be finalized.17

18
Mr. Singelakis reviewed his proposal.  He stated that if the committee decides to19
go with one ratepayer/one vote, his proposal may be a way to clarify it so you20
don't end up with so many on the board.  He proposes 26 and that Nashua would21
have 5 and all the other communities would have at least 1.  Anything left over,22
which is 6, would end up getting added into the communities with the highest-23
ranking number of customers.  You would divide the number of ratepayers by the24
number of delegates for that town would equal the number of points.25

26
Mr. Minkarah continues to favor the system that Ms. White distributed at the last27
meeting because it is simple and do account for ratepayers.  He provided a28
couple of different scenarios.  He believes there is some validity to looking at the29
total population of each community and provided a breakdown as a handout.  If30
established the District will be the overwhelmingly the largest municipality in the31
state of New Hampshire if all of these communities join; more than three times32
the size of Manchester and almost one-third of the population of the entire state.33
He advocates following a municipal and governmental model for those reasons.34
He does not entertain any notion that this will survive the process but thought the35
information should be brought forward and considered as they proceed forward.36
Mr. Britton asked about five or more towns that have not to date signed the37
Memorandum of Agreement.  He understands that they have a chance to sign in38
the long run but is not in agreement to give a town that has not as yet become a39
member any say.  Mr. Minkarah said he does not intend to give a town that does40
not participate voting rights but is simply a more inclusive formula, realizing that41
any that do not participate will be deleted from the whole.  He also expressed his42
thought that those communities that have watersheds have interests that are43
distinct from those that do not.  He presented a table showing ratepayers or total44
population, percent of the district's total number that this would represent,45
number of votes based on one vote per thousand, one delegate per 10,000 with46
a maximum of four and number of votes per representative. Because he believes47
that an adequate voice to all communities is the goal, he proposes that each48
community will have a minimum of one total vote.  He noted that this does not49
favor the larger communities.  He prepared these to show that there are a variety50



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 8

of different alternatives that need to be considered, to be sure that the diversity of1
interest that we have is adequately represented.   2

3
Chairperson Peterman asked if the previously devised watershed voice would be4
a part of these new proposals.  Mr. Minkarah said that the importance of the sub-5
committee would be greatly diminished under this new scenario.  6

7
Ms. Pressley asked about the watershed lands and how it is currently handled8
today.  Mr. Minkarah did not have the answer as to how things are handled9
currently but pointed out that this is not his main concern.  He said "what I am10
concerned about is being prospective and thinking about how we can create a11
regional entity and a municipal entity that adequately protects and addresses the12
needs of its constituents.  If Pennichuck today was doing something that I didn't13
think was appropriate, saying that let's do something that is still not appropriate14
but better that is not an adequate answer to my view.  I think we should try and15
come up with the best system that we can to represent our interests without16
regards to how Pennichuck is or isn't managing land, buildings, facilities today."17

18
Ms. Pressley said she believes that if we try to make policy today for something19
that you do not own it may be difficult.  Her suggestion would be to transfer20
ownership and then if you feel you want the water company to be involved in21
your local land use issues that you deal with that or set it up with the regional22
planning commission.  She doesn't see how the water company can get involved23
in each individual municipality's land use issues.24

25
Chairperson Peterman responded that the watershed protection evolves from,26
whether it is Pennichuck or not Pennichuck, the zoning ordinances in our towns.27

28
Mr. Byron commented that zoning only covers setbacks, wetlands and things of29
that nature.  The protection is controlled by the state in terms of the DES and30
how much in gallons per day that can be pumped.  He believes the cut point is31
57,600 gallons.  Anything above that you are state-regulated and anything below32
that you are wide open to do whatever you like.33

34
Mr. Minkarah said this is not what he is referring to.  He is talking about35
representation.  36

37
Mr. Singelakis suggested looking at something that combines population since it38
is the entire community that is becoming a member of the District, and39
ratepayers.   Chairperson Peterman asked if he would want to work on that and40
he agreed.41

42
Mr. Byron stated that he does not have a means of proportioning votes.  What he43
has is how to set up the District in terms of the various organizations that would44
be part of the District and how they would function and work together.45
Chairperson Peterman has Mr. Byron's proposal in her email and will forward it to46
the committee for their review.47

48
Ms. White reviewed her proposal as it was presented at the last meeting.  It took49
the number of ratepayers in each community, used the factor of 500.  The50
assumption was that a community would get one vote for 500 ratepayers or a51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 9

fraction of 500.  You would start out with every community getting one vote and1
then for every fraction above 500, you would get another vote.  What that works2
out to, making the assumption that the towns that have not joined will remain as3
customers, it gives Nashua 65% currently of the total vote.  There was a lot of4
discussion about who should be eligible for membership.  We talked about5
whether communities that only hire Pennichuck as a certified operator should be6
a member.  I suggested that it should not.  Other towns like Hudson that have7
contracts to both buy bulk water and sell bulk water should be an affiliate8
member.  That vote will not change over time because they do not have any9
ratepayers. For those towns with ratepayers, their numbers would change over10
time was the town grows.  Ms. Herman asked if we are fixed on the ratepayer11
being the common thread.  The response was, no.  Ms. White explained that she12
was attempting to distinguish between communities that only have service13
contracts and those that buy and sell bulk water.  Ms. Herman continued stating14
that she has been trying to find a way to establish credit for the various15
relationships because we are so dependent on each other in so many ways.  As16
contractual rates change what will occur?  Chairperson Peterman intervened by17
saying that Karen, Barbara and Andrew submitted proposals that are really all18
about the same thing.  She asked what this board is going to be doing when they19
make these votes.  The Board of Directors will be running the company.  It is20
probably going to be discussing policy issues.  Perhaps we should think of the21
critical things that this board would be voting on.  Maybe this will eliminate some22
of the fears.  Mr. Byron suggested that the proposal he has submitted address23
some of that.  It stated what the voting issues might be.  He summarized what he24
has submitted as the Board of Directors would propose a master plan and a25
separate plan called a resource utilization plan.  That board would be chaired by26
the COO.  Those types of documents would go to the main body, which would be27
the representative body and would have to be approved there.  The idea is that28
you have a smaller group of people making these studies, putting them in place29
and sending them to the larger representative body for consideration and debate.30
He put in place a veto power by a community.  Membership would have to be31
proposed by that Board of Directors and then be approved at the representative32
board.  Contracts, day in and day out expenses, capital improvement plan for the33
District would have to be proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by34
the representatives.  35

36
Mr. Byron explained that in his proposal he suggested that the representative37
board would meet only four times a year.  The Board of Directors, chaired by the38
COO, would meet monthly or bi-weekly, whatever is appropriate for the39
managing of the day-to-day business to give guidance to the COO.  The budget,40
the master plans, the resource utilization plans and those type of things would be41
put together by the representative board.  Mr. Minkarah stated that he was going42
along the exact same lines in his proposal with the representatives being the43
legislative body with the Board of Directors being more the governing body.  Mr.44
Byron proposes that the Board of Directors would draft the budget that would be45
voted on by the representative board.46

47
Ms. Pressley spoke in agreement with this model.  Ms. White advised that in the48
original draft, which was a model from Connecticut, there were a couple of things49
delegated specifically to the representative board.  One was acquisition or sale of50
watershed land in any community.  The representative board would hold a public51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 10

hearing in that community.  The other was consumer affairs.  The representative1
board would be more integral in running an office of consumer affairs.  Mr. Byron2
advised that in terms of watershed land his proposal calls for the determining3
organization for the purchase of watershed land to be the representative board.4
Ms. Jeffery asked where allocation of water would come in; if a town needs more5
water?  Mr. Byron responded that there is a master plan that is similar to what6
really happens on planning boards; a longer-term plan.  The resource utilization7
plan addresses these issues.  This would have to be approved at the8
representative board, but Mr. Byron included in his proposal a veto at the Board9
of Directors.  Chairperson Peterman asked about an example of a couple of10
subdivisions; each one advising they plan to use Pennichuck water.  She asked11
what was the process?  Did the subdivisions go to Pennichuck and request to tie12
in and does Pennichuck know where it has customers for others to tie in?  Mr.13
Singelakis said, not necessarily.  Mr. Byron explained in Litchfield, a developer14
would have to come to the planning board with a letter from Pennichuck stating15
clearly that they can support those developments.  He would expect in the16
District's case, a developer would come to the Board of Directors with a letter17
stating the same thing.  That would be compared against the resource plan to18
make sure it makes sense.  Chairperson Peterman asked if Pennichuck has its19
own resource plan and the responses were so confident that they do.   Ms. White20
explained that Pennichuck has a general idea and they do some general21
monitoring on the sustainability of its water resources.  Even they have a chart22
that shows that they will be tapped out by 2015 with a background growth23
projection and what their resources are now.  The big advantage of this District is24
that it knows, and so does the PUC know, that this state is not out of water, it is25
just in the wrong places.  As a District they are not precluded from looking at new26
sources of water.  She said Pennichuck watershed area is not the only resource.27
Mr. Singelakis said this is why it is important to tie it in to local town planning28
goals because you won't have this entity deciding if 4,000 houses get built in the29
next town.  Ms. Herman stated that she has her own system and her own well, so30
she is working on cleaning up water sources and envisions that at about the time31
Pennichuck comes to the time of not being able to take in any more, will be about32
the same time she is due to have a clean water supply sitting there.  The33
question came about when we had talked about franchises she said.34
Pennichuck does not need a franchise because the town is part of the water35
district, so who decides first.  She read in the minutes of the last meeting that the36
District was going to write into the Charter something that says the town gets the37
first voice on that kind of development.  She said she is curious because the38
franchises with Pennichuck right now, when they tie on it is only because it is39
over a certain elevation.  That has been the way that agreements go right now.40
Mr. Singelakis said that he would say that it goes to the town first.  A separate41
water system within the town should give the town the right to do that and does42
not support the Regional Water District having jurisdiction over it automatically.43
Ms. White advised that this was discussed at the last meeting, on working on a44
section in the Charter.  The general consensus was that municipal systems45
should always get first right to serve.  Mr. Britton advised that there had been46
some discussion in Nashua of putting together three or four scenarios that the47
District could look at also and see how they would handle them.  He cited capital48
improvements, changing the rates, development and cited that this group may49
want to look at these and try to vote them and see if it works.  Mr. Singelakis50
suggested that that has to be specifically written into the Charter for that to be the51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 11

case, that the municipality has jurisdiction over that water source, not the water1
district.  Ms. Herman asked which things are we working to build in.  Are we2
looking to build in as many safety nets now for individual municipalities as we can3
come up with?  Chairperson Peterman said she would think so and noted that4
charters are not static and they can change and once the proportionate voting is5
determined, the changing of the charter might be a policy issue that would fall6
back on this representative board.  Mr. Minkarah stated that we are so concerned7
about representation because the ability to amend this charter, once we all8
agree, we need to be very careful that it cannot be amended to change it9
completely.  He is not sure that an absolute veto should be given to any10
community simply because there may be times when there is a decision that11
needs to be made about a new water source or about some aspect of the system12
that really is plainly in the better interest of the region. In those instances we may13
need to have some override provision; perhaps even going to the PUC.  He14
stated that when it comes to the allocation of water issue however we do it, it is15
very important to put in some objective criteria.  Currently, Pennichuck does have16
a pretty good estimate of what they have.  They look at the size of the mains, and17
it is in their interest because they are profit-motivated to sell the water.  What the18
motivation of this group is going to be he really does not know.  Some of the19
communities may have different interests when it comes to development.  Mr.20
Singelakis said it would have to be objective and based on a resource allocation21
plan, asking if there is enough water and does it comply with the master plan.22
Mr. Jeffery suggested that the tough part of that equation is, if there is enough23
water.  There is not enough data and data costs money.  Nobody is tabulating24
what the flow rates are on the existing wells.  Mr. Garron advised that right now25
when a sub-division comes before the town, among other things, look at the26
water if they are going to be served by water and they look for that letter from27
that water district to say they can service it.  He asked how that would change28
once the District takes it over.  Mr. Byron responded that he had suggested that29
he would keep the smaller body, the Board of Directors, focussed on the smaller30
timeframe issues that need to be addressed within a month for instance.  The31
governing body, which is the representative board, would be responsible for the32
big issues as they would meet only a couple of times a year.  He would think that33
the COO, his/her staff, or the Board of Directors would have responsibility for34
these items but pointed out that this is a concept and has been put forth for35
discussion and a lot of things may change.  Mr. White stated that the36
representative board should never get involved in deciding if a development or a37
town gets water.  It should be involved in the larger priorities such as at what38
point in our future should new sources of water be developed.  Ms. Pressley39
suggested that one thing that would likely change if they go by a ratepayer per40
vote, is that if you put in a condominium you will not have one connection, but41
rather one connection per household.  She said this would be a good thing.  Mr.42
Britton responded to one of Mr., Minkarah's issue that was regarding veto power.43
Perhaps an addition to this would be that you could overturn a veto by a larger44
super-majority vote.  The other consideration is the issue of assigning votes45
based on watershed protection land; it is going to be natural for people to try to46
see their town develop more watershed protection.47

48
Chairperson Peterman summarized that there are four proposals before them,49
and asks that they be reviewed to determine if combinations of them, or one or50
the other, or maybe another proposal.  She committed to sending out Mr. Byron's51



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - April 10, 2003 - Page 12

proposal to the committee.  She suggests looking at what each person thinks the1
representative board might be involved in.  She asks that ideas be brought to the2
next meeting.  Mr. Garron asked about a fifth proposal that Mr. Singelakis will be3
preparing, combining population and ratepayers and suggested that should be4
given consideration.  Mr. Britton said that Nashua has not submitted a formal5
plan yet and may be submitting as many as two plans.  Chairperson Peterman6
asked that Nashua's proposal or proposals be provided so they may be7
considered at the same time as the others are being discussed, rather than8
afterwards.  Mr. Britton committed to doing his best to bring at least one to the9
next meeting.    Ms. Pressley said that this is the water supply for the city, 85,00010
people, and they have had it for 150 years and every plan brought forward fails to11
recognize that.  She said representation is representation.  She stated that12
Nashua is not going to be growing at the rate other towns will be in the future.13
She suggested that in looking at the proposals, know that this is the entire water14
supply for the entire city of Nashua that has the vast amount of everything15
involved in this.  The plans submitted thus far diminish the 80% to about 55% for16
representation and suggests that is going to be a tough sell to take to the citizens17
of Nashua.  She asked that the group not think of Nashua as the 800-pound18
gorilla, but to start thinking of Nashua as a gentle giant.19

20
The next meeting is on April 24, 2003.21
 22
Adjournment23

24
The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 P.M.  25




